
 

 

 

 
 

August 1, 2024 

 

VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION 

 

Mr. Sam Altman 

Chief Executive Officer 

OpenAI 

 

Dear Mr. Altman: 

 

 OpenAI whistleblowers filed a complaint with the Securities and Exchange Commission 

(SEC) alleging, among other allegations, the use of “illegally restrictive non-disclosure 

agreements (‘NDAs’).”1  I recently obtained a copy of a letter sent by these whistleblowers to 

SEC Chairman Gary Gensler referencing this complaint and raising several concerns with 

OpenAI’s employment, severance, non-disparagement, and nondisclosure agreements.2  I am 

concerned these agreements may be stifling your employees from making protected disclosures 

to government regulators.   

 

For over a decade, I’ve sounded the alarm about restrictive NDAs that hinder oversight 

and improperly silence employees from making protected disclosures.3  On June 4, 2024, 

OpenAI employees issued an open letter demanding AI companies exempt employees from their 

NDAs, allowing them to warn regulators and the public about potential safety risks of AI.4  

Recently, two Washington Post articles highlighted the harms of restrictive NDAs in the AI 

sector, specifically at OpenAI.5  On July 12, 2024, the Washington Post reported that OpenAI’s 

safety team sped through testing protocols, “designed to prevent the technology [GPT-4o] from 

causing catastrophic harm,” to meet a self-imposed May launch date.6  Specifically, the article 

                                                 
1 Letter from OpenAI Whistleblower(s), to the Honorable Gary Gensler, Chair of the Securities and Exchange Commission, 1 

(July 1, 2024), https://www.washingtonpost.com/documents/83df0e55-546c-498a-9efc-

06fac591904e.pdf?itid=lk_inline_manual_4; see also Pranshu Verma, et al, OpenAI illegally barred staff from airing safety risks, 

whistleblowers say, WASHINGTON POST (July 13, 2024), https://www.washingtonpost.com/technology/2024/07/13/openai-safety-

risks-whistleblower-sec/.  
2 Verma, supra note 1.  
3 Sen. Charles E. Grassley, Grassley: Federal Agencies Failing To Implement Anti-Gag Provision Of Whistleblower Law (Apr. 2, 

2014), https://www.grassley.senate.gov/news/news-releases/grassley-federal-agencies-failing-implement-anti-gag-provision-

whistleblower-law; Letter from Charles E. Grassley, Chairman, Senate Judiciary Committee, to the Honorable Tristan Leavitt, 

Acting Special Counsel of the U.S. Office of Special Counsel (Sept. 25, 2017), 

https://www.judiciary.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/2017-09-

25%20CEG%20to%20OSC%20(NDAs%20with%20other%20Agencies).pdf; Letter from Charles E. Grassley, Chairman, Senate 

Judiciary Committee, to the Honorable Jeff Sessions, Attorney General of the United States (Oct. 18, 2017), 

https://www.grassley.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/2017-10-18%20CEG%20to%20DOJ%20(Uranium%20NDA).pdf.  
4 A Right to Warn about Artificial Intelligence (June 4, 2024), https://righttowarn.ai/; see also Samantha Murphy Kelly, OpenAI 

insiders’ open letter warns of ‘serious risks’ and calls for whistleblower protections, CNN (June 4, 2024), 

https://www.cnn.com/2024/06/04/tech/openai-insiders-letter/index.html.  
5 Verma, supra note 1; see also Pranshu Verma, et al, OpenAI promised to make its AI safe. Employees say it ‘failed’ its first test, 

WASHINGTON POST (July 12, 2024), https://www.washingtonpost.com/technology/2024/07/12/openai-ai-safety-regulation-

gpt4/.  
6 Verma (July 12, 2024), supra note 5.   
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discussed risks with the company’s self-policing of safety.7  Though OpenAI stated it launched a 

Safety Advisory Group and Superalignment team to address “catastrophic risks,” the article 

quoted multiple employees admitting OpenAI “squeezed” and “skirted” safety protocols for its 

GPT-4o launch.8  According to the article, this incident prompted several current and former 

OpenAI employees to speak out.9  On July 13, 2024, the Washington Post published another 

article entitled, “OpenAI illegally barred staff from airing safety risks, whistleblowers say.”10   

 

It is crucial OpenAI ensure its employees can provide protected disclosures without 

illegal restrictions.  On July 19, 2024, as well as July 29, 2024, my staff spoke with yours and 

requested records.  So Congress may conduct objective and independent oversight on OpenAI’s 

safety protocols and NDAs, please provide answers to the following no later than August 15, 

2024:  

 

1. Regarding OpenAI’s employment, severance, non-disparagement, and non-disclosure 

agreements, has OpenAI made changes to the language of the agreements to remove the 

restrictive provisions?  If so, provide a copy of the updated version(s). 

 

2. From 2023 to the date of this letter, how many requests did OpenAI receive from 

employees to disclose information to federal authorities?  For each request, provide all 

records, including the relevant federal authorities, the nature of the information to be 

disclosed, and whether OpenAI permitted the disclosure.  

 

3. From 2023 to the date of this letter, how many SEC investigations has OpenAI been 

subject to?  For each SEC investigation, provide the basis and outcome.    

 

Thank you for your prompt review and responses.  If you have any questions, please 

contact Tucker Akin on my Committee staff at (202) 224-0642. 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Charles E. Grassley 

Ranking Member                 

Committee on the Budget 

 

 

                                                 
7 Id.; see also Lauren Camera, Top Tech Firms Make Pledge to White House Over Development of AI, U.S. NEWS & WORLD 

REPORT (July 21, 2023), https://www.usnews.com/news/national-news/articles/2023-07-21/top-tech-firms-make-pledge-to-white-

house-over-development-of-ai; Exec. Order No. 14110, 88 Fed. Reg. 75191 (Nov. 1, 2023).   
8 Verma (July 12, 2024), supra note 5. (According to OpenAI “catastrophic risks” are incidents “‘which could result in hundreds 

of billions of dollars in economic damage or lead to the severe harm or death of many individuals.”) 
9 Id.  
10 Verma, supra note 1.   
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